
AB 
EMPLOYMENT COMMITTEE 
 

THURSDAY 17 JUNE 2021 
5.00 PM 
 

Sand Martin House, Bittern Way, Peterborough, PE2 8TY 
 
 
 

AGENDA  

 Page No 

 
1. Apologies for Absence 

 
 

2. Declarations of Interest 
 

 

 At this point Members must declare whether they have a disclosable 
pecuniary interest, or other interest, in any of the items on the agenda, 
unless it is already entered in the register of members’ interests or is a 
“pending notification “ that has been disclosed to the Solicitor to the Council.  

 
 

 

3. Minutes of the Meeting Held on 
 

 

 3.1 25 August 2020 
 

3 - 6 

 3.2 17 September 2020 
 

7 - 10 

 3.3 14 October 2020 
 

11 - 14 

 3.4 17 November 2020 
 

15 - 18 

 3.5 27 November 2020 (AM) 
 

19 - 20 

 3.6 27 November 2020 (PM) 
 

21 - 22 

 3.7 18 December 2020 
 

23 - 26 

 3.8 18 February 2021 
 

27 - 30 

 3.9 15 April 2021 
 

31 - 34 

4. Revised Employment Policies 
 

35 - 58 

 
  

This meeting will be available to view live on Peterborough City Council's 
Youtube Page. Due to the government legislation on social distancing and the 
limited space available if you would like to observe the meeting in person, 
please register by emailing or calling Dan Kalley on the details below.  

 

 

Public Document Pack

1



 
 
Recording of Council Meetings 
Any member of the public may film, audio-record, take photographs and use social media to report the 
proceedings of any meeting that is open to the public. Audio-recordings of meetings may be published on 
the Council’s website. A protocol on this facility is available at:  
 
http://democracy.peterborough.gov.uk/documents/s21850/Protocol%20on%20the%20use%20of%20Recording.pd
f 
 
 

Committee Members: 
 

Councillors: M Jamil, Hemraj, W Fitzgerald (Vice Chairman), R Brown (Chairman), Wiggin, Allen 
and Tyler 

 
Substitutes: Councillors: Hogg and I Walsh 

 
Further information about this meeting can be obtained from Dan Kalley on telephone 01733 
296334 or by email – daniel.kalley@peterborough.gov.uk 

 
 

2

http://democracy.peterborough.gov.uk/documents/s21850/Protocol%20on%20the%20use%20of%20Recording.pdf
http://democracy.peterborough.gov.uk/documents/s21850/Protocol%20on%20the%20use%20of%20Recording.pdf


 
 
     
 

MINUTES OF THE EXTRAORDINARY EMPLOYMENT COMMITTEE MEETING  
HELD AT 9AM ON  
25 AUGUST 2020  

VIA ZOOM CONFERENCE 

 
Committee Members Present: Councillors Brown (Chairman), Holdich (Vice-Chairman), 
Fitzgerald, Hemraj, Jamil, Yurgutene and Wiggin.  

 
Officers Present:  Karen Craig               Senior Rewards Officer 

Karen S Dunleavy     Democratic Services Officer 
Lisa Brightey              Reward Advisor - Policy and Projects 

Steve Cox                  Executive Director - Place and Economy 

Sue Grace                  Director - Customer and Digital Services 

                                               

  
 
5. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

 
 No apologies for absence were received. 

 
6.  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

 
 No declarations of interest were received. 

 
7. ASSISTANT DIRECTOR IT & DIGITAL SERVICES 
  
 The Employment Committee received a report in relation to the appointment of an 

Assistant Director IT & Digital Services following approval of the Joint ICT Strategy to be 
implemented across Peterborough City Council (PCC) and Cambridgeshire County 
Council (CCC) alongside the formal exit of the Managed ICT Contract with Serco (PCC) 
and the Local Government IT Shared Services (CCC). 
 

 The purpose of the report was for the committee to consider and comment on the proposed 
job description and renumeration package.  

 The Director for Customer and Digital Services introduced the report and provided an 

overview of the decision to build a new IT service across both counties from Autumn 

2020. The role would encompass leading the existing IT teams and would report to the 

Director for Customer and Digital Services and would provide an efficient service for the 

future with the cost being shared equally between the two councils. 

 

The Cabinet Member for Digital Services and Transformation had requested minor 

changes to the job description to include commercialism, enabling the service to be 

offered to other councils. He had also requested that IT should lead the transformation of 

other services across the council. 

 

 The Employment Committee debated the report and in summary, key points raised and 
responses to questions included: 

3



 

 Members welcomed the move away from SERCO, however they were concerned 
that savings could be met. Members were advised that by combining the systems 
across both councils, savings should be achieved. 

 This role would be leading a restructure across the whole IT service in order to 
deliver efficiencies. 

 Existing staff from SERCO will be transferred over from 1st October 2020 under 
Transfer of Undertakings (Protection of Employment) regulations (TUPE). 

 The service could be offered to businesses outside the council. In the first instance 
it would probably be offered to other local authorities first as that would be a more 
familiar operating environment. 

 The post had been evaluated using the Hay job evaluation scale. 

 It was anticipated the postholder would lead on the restructuring of the IT 
department, Adult Services, website management and similar projects where it had 
been identified that merging existing teams could generate efficiencies. 

 
 The Employment Committee considered the report and RESOLVED (unanimously) to: 

 
1. Note the report, having considered the proposed job description for Assistant 

Director IT & Digital Services for approval, making any necessary proposals for 
changes and, if required, delegating authority to finally approve the job descriptions 
to the Director Customer & Digital Services in consultation with the Chairman of 
Employment Committee  

2. Endorse the appropriate remuneration band for the post of Assistant Director IT & 
Digital Services. 

 
 
 
8. PLACE AND ECONOMY DIRECTORATE – SENIOR MANAGEMENT CHANGES 
  
 The Employment Committee received a report in relation to the management structure of 

the Place and Economy service area with a view to adding the posts of Assistant Director 
Growth and Regeneration (CCC and PCC) and Assistant Director Housing (PCC) 
 

 The purpose of the report was to provide the Employment Committee with the opportunity 
to share views and feedback on the proposed senior management structure and the job 
descriptions and be satisfied that they accurately reflect the work and the standards 
expected of the post holders. 

 The Executive Director for Place & Economy CCC and PCC introduced the report, 
outlining his proposals for a new management structure to deliver the regeneration and 
housing agendas. He explained that the key responsibilities of the proposed postholders 
which were currently being undertaken by interim directors and felt it was important these 
were made permanent roles. He briefly outlined the objectives for the growth and 
regeneration of the city using the New Towns Funding and the £25m anticipated from 
central government.   
 
There had been significant improvements in the way homelessness and rough sleepers 
had been managed, with significant cost savings achieved. Current considerations 
included better management of housing to ensure supply met demand and the setting up 
of an HRA (Housing Revenue Account) which would require leadership at Assistant 
Director level.  
 

 The Employment Committee debated the report and in summary, key points raised and 
responses to questions included: 
 

4



 Savings would be achieved through the way housing management was 
undertaken and the collection of rent would be improved. 

 These were high profile roles which would be advertised nationally. 

 The remit for these roles was narrower and more specific than the service director 
roles previously advertised which should make recruitment more achievable. 
Similar roles had been recruited to other councils in the last 12 months. 

 The salaries for both roles had been determined using the Hay scale with a 
maximum salary of £97,000. The market had been assessed through employment 
agencies and it was thought this salary would be sufficient to attract good 
candidates. 

 The appointment would be formalised by the Employment Committee and any 
negotiations required could be considered at that stage should the salary be 
insufficient. 

 
 

 AGREED ACTIONS 
 
The Employment Committee considered the report and RESOLVED (unanimously) to: 
 

1. Agree to the new senior management structure in Place & Economy  
      Appendix A) and the creation of the following new deputy chief officer posts:  
 

i. Shared Assistant Director Growth and Regeneration (shared role with  
      Cambridgeshire  County Council (CCC) 

ii. Assistant Director Housing (100% Peterborough City Council (PCC) 
 

2. Approve the job descriptions and, if required, delegate authority to finally  
      approve the job  descriptions to the Executive Director Place and Economy in        
      Consultation  with the Chairman of Employment Committee.  

 
3. Approve that the tried and tested joint appointment process be followed for  
      recruiting to the new Shared Assistant Director role for Growth and Regeneration.  

 
4. Approve the remuneration band for the shared Assistant Director Growth &  
      Regeneration & Assistant Director Housing. 

 
  

 
Chairman 

25 August 2020 
9:00-9:30am 

 

5



This page is intentionally left blank

6



 
 
     
 

MINUTES OF THE EXTRAORDINARY EMPLOYMENT COMMITTEE MEETING  
HELD AT 5PM ON  

17 SEPTEMBER 2020  
VIA ZOOM CONFERENCE 

 
Committee Members Present: Councillors Brown (Chairman), Holdich (Vice-Chairman), Jamil, 
Yurgutene and Wiggin.  

 
Officers Present: Dan Kalley                  Senior Democratic Services Officer 

Mandy Pullen             Assistant Director HR & Organisational    
Development 

Gillian Beasley           Chief Executive 

                                               

  
 
9. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

 
 Apologies for absence were received from Cllr Fitzgerald 

 
10.  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

 
 No declarations of interest were received. 

 
11. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING 

 

 The minutes of the meeting held on 17 June 2020 were agreed as a true and accurate 
record. 
 

12. DIRECTOR OF RESOURCES 
  
 The Employment Committee received a report in relation to the appointment of the 

Corporate Director Resources and S151 Officer on a permanent basis. 
 

 The purpose of the report was for the committee to consider and comment on the proposed 
job description and renumeration package.  

 The Chief Executive introduced the report and stated that this was a key role within the 

Council. The role involved stewardship and ownership of the Councils finances. 

Members were informed that following a senior leadership restructure in 2018 it was vital 

that this role was not a shared role with Cambridgeshire County Council. Since the 

resignation of the previous post holder in 2017 the role had been filled on a temporary 

basis. However it was now the right time to go out to advertise for the role on a 

permanent contract. The financial challenges faced by the Council meant it was now 

more important than ever to have the role filled on a permanent basis. Members were 

informed that the only person within the Council who could stop any expenditure was the 

Corporate Director of Resources which was a statutory duty to ensure the Council was 

delivering a balanced budget. A program around recruitment to the role was already in 

place and the Employment Committee would interview candidates and recommend to 

7



Full Council as appropriate. This process was to be completed by the end of the year as 

this would need to go to Full Council in December. 

 

The Assistant Director HR & Organisational Development stated that the job description 

had been evaluated through the Hay national job evaluation scheme, which had been 

used for previous chief officer roles. The role was deemed to be a band three role and 

the remuneration package was £110,175 up to £134,659, which contained five spinal 

column points. There was a saving of around £30,000 which would be made by the 

Council. 

 

 The Employment Committee debated the report and in summary, key points raised and 
responses to questions included: 
 

 In terms of the salary officers had looked at what other authorities had been offering 
for the same position. The Hay’s scheme looked at the duties that sat within the 
job description and many other Council’s had used equal pay evaluation schemes. 

 The Council was to be assisted in recruiting to the role by the Local Government 
Association and would help with the technical aspects of the interviews. The view 
was that Peterborough would be an attractive job for Finance Directors and a 
number of potential candidates had been identified. 

 
 The Employment Committee considered the report and RESOLVED (unanimously) to: 

 
1. Consider the proposed job description for Director of Resources & s151 Officer for 

approval, making any necessary proposals for changes and, if required, delegating 
authority to finally approve the job description to the Chief Executive in consultation 
with the Chairman of Employment Committee  

2. Approve the remuneration band for the Director of Resources & s151 Officer 
 

 
 
 

Chairman 
17 September 2020 

5:00-5:15pm 
  

8



 
 

 

9



This page is intentionally left blank

10



 
 
     
 

MINUTES OF THE EXTRAORDINARY EMPLOYMENT COMMITTEE MEETING  
HELD AT 1PM ON  
14 OCTOBER 2020  

VIA ZOOM CONFERENCE 

 
Committee Members Present: Councillors Brown (Chair) Holdich (Vice-Chair), Farooq, Jamil, 
Hemraj, Yurgutene and Wiggin.  

 
Officers Present:  Dan Kalley                  Senior Democratic Services Officer 

Sue Grace                  Director Customer and Digital Services 

Sarah Spendelow       Senior HR Business Partner 

Pam Leverton            HR Manager 

                                               

  
 
13. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

 
 Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Fitzgerald and Councillor Farooq 

attended as substitute.  
 

14.  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 

 No declarations of interest were received. 
 

15. EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS 
  
 In accordance with Standing Orders, the Committee was asked to determine whether item 

4 ‘Appointment of Shared Assistant Director IT Services’ as defined by Paragraph 1, 2 and 
4 of Schedule 12A of Part 1 of the Local Government Act 1972, should be exempt and the 
press and public excluded from the meeting when they were discussed, or whether the 
public interest in disclosing this information outweighed the public interest in maintaining 
the exemption.  
 
The Committee resolved (unanimous) to agree the exclusion of the press and public for 
agenda item 4 

 
 
16. APPOINTMENT OF SHARED ASSISTANT DIRECTOR IT SERVICES 
  
 As agreed at agenda item 3, the meeting moved into exempt session.  

 
At this point Members from Cambridgeshire County Council’s Staffing and Appeals 
Committee joined the meeting to interview for the position of Shared Assistant Director 
IT Services.  
 
RESOLVED:  
 
The Employment Committee RESOLVED to  
 

11



1. Appoint a shared Assistant Director IT Services Place by way of secondment 
arrangements with Cambridgeshire County Council, and  
2. Formally endorse Samantha Smith to the post of shared Assistant Director IT Services. 
  

 
Chairman 

14 October 2020 
1.00-3.00pm 

  

12



 
 

 

13



This page is intentionally left blank

14



 
 
     
 

MINUTES OF THE EXTRAORDINARY EMPLOYMENT COMMITTEE MEETING  
HELD AT 1PM ON  

17 NOVEMBER 2020  
VIA ZOOM CONFERENCE 

 
Committee Members Present: Councillors Brown (Chairman), Holdich (Vice-Chairman), Seaton, 
Amjad Iqbal, Jamil, Yurgutene and Wiggin.  

 
Officers Present:  Mandy Pullen             Assistant Director HR & Organisational 

Development 
Dan Kalley                  Senior Democratic Services Officer 
Gillian Beasley           Chief Executive 

                                               

  
 
17. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

 
 Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Fitzgerald and Councillor Seaton 

attended as substitute. Councillor Hemraj also sent apologies and Councillor Amjad Iqbal 
attended as substitute. 
 

18.  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 

 No declarations of interest were received. 
 

19. EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS 
  
 In accordance with Standing Orders, the Committee was asked to determine whether item 

4 ‘Appointment of Director of Resources’ as defined by Paragraph 1, 2 and 4 of Schedule 
12A of Part 1 of the Local Government Act 1972, should be exempt and the press and 
public excluded from the meeting when they were discussed, or whether the public interest 
in disclosing this information outweighed the public interest in maintaining the exemption.  
 
The Committee resolved (unanimous) to agree the exclusion of the press and public for 
agenda item 4 

 
 
20. APPOINTMENT OF CORPORATE DIRECTOR RESOURCES 
  
 As agreed at agenda item 3, the meeting moved into exempt session.  

 
RESOLVED:  
 
The Employment Committee RESOLVED to  
 

1. Appoint Pete Carpenter to the position of Director of Resources 
2. Endorse to Full Council the appointment of Pete Carpenter to carry out the duties 

of the S151 officer. 
 

15



 
Chairman 

17 November 2020 
1.00-4:00pm 

  

16



 
 

 

17



This page is intentionally left blank

18



 
 
     
 

MINUTES OF THE EXTRAORDINARY EMPLOYMENT COMMITTEE MEETING  
HELD AT 9AM ON  

27 NOVEMBER 2020  
VIA ZOOM CONFERENCE 

 
Committee Members Present: Councillors Holdich (Vice-Chair), Fitzgerald, Hiller, Jamil, 
Yurgutene and Wiggin.  

 
Officers Present:  Dan Kalley                  Senior Democratic Services Officer 

Steve Cox                  Executive Director Place and Economy 

Mandy Pullen             Assistant Director HR & Organisational   

Development 

Sarah Spendelow       Senior HR Business Partner 

Pam Leverton            HR Manager 

                                               

  
 
21. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

 
 Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Brown and Councillor Hiller attended 

as substitute. Apologies for absence were also received from Councillor Hemraj. 
 

22.  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 

 No declarations of interest were received. 
 

23. EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS 
  
 In accordance with Standing Orders, the Committee was asked to determine whether item 

4 ‘Appointment of Shared Assistant Director Growth and Regeneration’ as defined by 
Paragraph 1, 2 and 4 of Schedule 12A of Part 1 of the Local Government Act 1972, should 
be exempt and the press and public excluded from the meeting when they were discussed, 
or whether the public interest in disclosing this information outweighed the public interest 
in maintaining the exemption.  
 
The Committee resolved (unanimous) to agree the exclusion of the press and public for 
agenda item 4 

 
 
24. APPOINTMENT OF SHARED ASSISTANT DIRECTOR GROWTH AND 

REGENERATION 
  
 As agreed at agenda item 3, the meeting moved into exempt session.  

 
At this point Members from Cambridgeshire County Council’s Staffing and Appeals 
Committee joined the meeting to interview for the position of Shared Assistant Director 
Growth and Regeneration. 
 

19



Following the interviews a vote was taken by the Cambridgeshire Staffing and Appeals 
Committee whereby a decision was reached that no appointment to the position of 
Shared Assistant Director Growth and Regeneration was made.  
 
  

 
Chairman 

27 November 2020 
9.00-12.00am 

 

20



 
 
     
 

MINUTES OF THE EXTRAORDINARY EMPLOYMENT COMMITTEE MEETING  
HELD AT 1PM ON  

27 NOVEMBER 2020  
VIA ZOOM CONFERENCE 

 
Committee Members Present: Councillors Holdich (Vice-Chair), Fitzgerald, Allen, Jamil, 
Yurgutene and Wiggin.  

 
Officers Present:  Mandy Pullen             Assistant Director HR & Organisational 

Development 
Dan Kalley                  Senior Democratic Services Officer 
Steve Cox                  Executive Director Place and Economy 

Sarah Spendelow       Senior HR Business Partner 

Pam Leverton            HR Manager 

                                               

  
 
25. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

 
 Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Brown and Councillor Allen attended 

as substitute. Councillor Hemraj also sent apologies. 
 

26.  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 

 No declarations of interest were received. 
 

27. EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS 
  
 In accordance with Standing Orders, the Committee was asked to determine whether item 

4 ‘Appointment of Assistant Director Housing’ as defined by Paragraph 1, 2 and 4 of 
Schedule 12A of Part 1 of the Local Government Act 1972, should be exempt and the 
press and public excluded from the meeting when they were discussed, or whether the 
public interest in disclosing this information outweighed the public interest in maintaining 
the exemption.  
 
The Committee resolved (unanimous) to agree the exclusion of the press and public for 
agenda item 4 

 
 
28. APPOINTMENT OF ASSISTANT DIRECTOR HOUSING 
  
 As agreed at agenda item 3, the meeting moved into exempt session.  

 
RESOLVED:  
 
The Employment Committee RESOLVED (3 For, 3 Against) on a casting vote of the Chair 
to  
 

1. Appoint Michael Kelleher to the position of Assistant Director Housing 

21



 
 

Chairman 
27 November 2020 

1.30-4:30pm 

22



 
 
     
 

MINUTES OF THE EXTRAORDINARY EMPLOYMENT COMMITTEE MEETING  
HELD AT 1PM ON  

18 DECEMBER 2020  
VIA ZOOM CONFERENCE 

 
Committee Members Present: Councillors Holdich (Vice-Chair), Fitzgerald, Hiller, Jamil, 
Hemraj, Yurgutene and Wiggin.  

 
Officers Present:  Dan Kalley                  Senior Democratic Services Officer 

Steve Cox                  Executive Director Place and Economy 

Mandy Pullen             Assistant Director HR & Organisational   

Development 

Pam Leverton            HR Manager 

                                               

  
 
29. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

 
 Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Brown and Councillor Hiller attended 

as substitute. 
 

30.  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 

 No declarations of interest were received. 
 

31. EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS 
  
 In accordance with Standing Orders, the Committee was asked to determine whether item 

4 ‘Appointment of Assistant Director Growth and Regeneration’ as defined by Paragraph 
1, 2 and 4 of Schedule 12A of Part 1 of the Local Government Act 1972, should be exempt 
and the press and public excluded from the meeting when they were discussed, or whether 
the public interest in disclosing this information outweighed the public interest in 
maintaining the exemption.  
 
The Committee resolved (unanimous) to agree the exclusion of the press and public for 
agenda item 4 

 
 
32. APPOINTMENT OF ASSISTANT DIRECTOR GROWTH AND REGENERATION 
  
 As agreed at agenda item 3, the meeting moved into exempt session.  

 
RESOLVED:  
 
The Employment Committee RESOLVED (Unanimous) to: 
 

1. Appoint Emma Gee to the position of Assistant Director Growth and Regeneration 
 
  

23



 
Chairman 

18 December 2020 
9.30-11.00am 

  

24



 
 

 

25



This page is intentionally left blank

26



 
 
     
 

MINUTES OF THE EXTRAORDINARY EMPLOYMENT COMMITTEE MEETING  
HELD AT 5PM ON  

18 FEBRUARY 2021  
VIA ZOOM CONFERENCE 

 
Committee Members Present: Councillors Brown (Chair), Holdich (Vice-Chair), Fitzgerald, 
Jamil, Hemraj, Yurgutene and Wiggin.  

 
Officers Present:  Dan Kalley                  Senior Democratic Services Officer 

Mandy Pullen             Assistant Director HR & Organisational   

Development 

Lisa Brightey              Policy, Reward and Compliance Manager 

                                               

  
 
33. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

 
 There were no apologies for absence received 

 
34.  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

 
 No declarations of interest were received. 

 
35. REVISED EMPLOYMENT POLICIES 
  
 The Committee received a report in relation to updates to the Sickness Absence 

Management Policy and the updated Time Off Policy. 
 
The Assistant Director HR and Organisational Development informed members that there 
were three reports on the agenda for the meeting. 
 
The Policy, Reward and Compliance Manager introduced the report and stated that the 
Sickness Absence Management Policy was updated after an annual review and the 
introduction of the Absence Management module in the HR system. As part of the review 
the policy was consulted on with managers, union representatives and HR advisers. This 
updated policy would provide clearer guidance for managers and employees. 
 
The main changes were that the Council considered long term sickness to start at four 
weeks of continuous absence instead of the two week period that was in the current policy. 
After consultation with managers and union representatives the Council no longer termed 
the issuing of formal warnings as an outcome of the formal long term sickness meetings 
and it was suggested that this was changed to notifications. It was important to stress that 
an employee still needed to understand the implications for long-term sickness, however 
the new wording softened the actions which was important for those who were struggling 
with ill health.  
 
In relation to the Time Off Policy this had been updated to ensure the Council supported 
employees who wanted to foster or adopt children. It was hoped this would help support 

27



the fostering services within Peterborough. It was proposed to allow foster carers five days 
off paid leave to attend the mandatory pre-fostering training, this was a one off occurrence. 
 
The Employment Committee debated the report and in summary, key points raised and 
responses to questions included:  
  

 It was not anticipated that there would be a large number of people within the Council 
who would take up foster caring. Officers agreed to go back and see if there were any 
figures around this, however it was possible that some people did not declare that they 
had gone on fostering training. 

 
RESOLVED: 
 
The Committee RESOLVED (unanimous) to approve:  
 
1) the updated Sickness Absence Management Policy and  
2) the updated Time Off Policy. 

 
 
36. ANNUAL PAY POLICY 2021/22 
  
 The Committee received a report in relation to the Annual Pay Policy statement for 

2020/21. 
 
The Policy, Reward and Compliance Manager introduced the report and confirmed that 
the Council was required under the Localism Act 2011 to produce an annual pay policy 
statement which needed to be approved by Full Council. The measurement in the policy 
showed the difference between the lowest paid member of staff and the highest paid 
member of staff. In Peterborough the lowest salary increased from £18,666 to £19,515. 
This meant the ratio between the top and bottom earner decreased from 9.3 to 1 last year 
to 8.89 to 1 this year.  
 
The policy demonstrated that between January 2020 and January 2021 the median salary 
in the Council increased from £31,378 to £32,624, however the mean salary increased 
from £33,748 to £35,633. This showed the Council’s commitment to reduce the ration 
from the top salary to the lowest salary. 
 
RESOLVED:  
 
The Employment Committee RESOLVED (Unanimous) to note the content of the Pay 
Policy Statement for 2021/22. 
 
  

37. GENDER PAY GAP RESULTS 
 

 The Committee received a report in relation to the Council’s Gender Pay Gap reporting 
as at 31 March 2020. 

 
The Policy, Reward and Compliance Manager introduced the report and stated that the 

figures needed to be reported on the government portal by the 30 March 2021. 
The report was used to assess the level of gender pay gaps in the workplace and 
the balance of male and female employees at different levels. The mean pay gap 
has reduced from 5.4% in favour of men to 5.1% in favour of men. The median 
pay gap has increased from 2.1% in favour of women to 4.6% in favour of women. 
This was the result in an increase in the bottom two quartiles of female employees 
and also an increase in the total number of women in the workforce. Both the 
mean and median pay gaps were below the national average. The Council 

28



continued to show no bias in their recruitment processes, training and promotion 
policies. 

 
The Employment Committee debated the report and in summary, key points raised and 
responses to questions included:  
  

 The Council had a smaller gap in pay than the national average. In general local 
authorities had more female workers than male workers. This was due to more part-
time positions and flexible working arrangements. 

 At director level this was predominately more female than male. At head of service 
level there was more of an even split. 

 It was agreed that equality monitoring data would be shared to see the breakdown of 
male and female ratios at different levels within the Council. 

 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
The Employment Committee RESOLVED (Unanimous) to accept the results of the 
gender pay gap calculations of 31 March 2020 

 
Chairman 

18 February 2021 
5.00pm-5.15pm 

 

29



This page is intentionally left blank

30



 
 
     
 

MINUTES OF THE EXTRAORDINARY EMPLOYMENT COMMITTEE MEETING  
HELD AT 11AM ON  

15 APRIL 2021  
VIA ZOOM CONFERENCE 

 
Committee Members Present: Councillors Brown (Chair) Holdich (Vice-Chair), Fitzgerald, Jamil, 
Hemraj, Yurgutene and Wiggin.  

 
Officers Present:  Dan Kalley                  Senior Democratic Services Officer 

Mandy Pullen               Assistant Director HR & Organisation 

Development 

Gillian Beasley           Chief Executive 

 

                                               

  
 
38. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

 
 There were no apologies for absence received. 

 
39.  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

 
 No declarations of interest were received. 

 
40. EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS 
  
 In accordance with Standing Orders, the Committee was asked to determine whether item 

4 ‘Appointment of Shared Director of Public Health’ as defined by Paragraph 1, 2 and 4 of 
Schedule 12A of Part 1 of the Local Government Act 1972, should be exempt and the 
press and public excluded from the meeting when they were discussed, or whether the 
public interest in disclosing this information outweighed the public interest in maintaining 
the exemption.  
 
The Committee resolved (unanimous) to agree the exclusion of the press and public for 
agenda item 4 

 
 
41. APPOINTMENT OF SHARED DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC HEALTH 
  
 As agreed at agenda item 3, the meeting moved into exempt session.  

 
At this point Members from Cambridgeshire County Council’s Staffing and Appeals 
Committee joined the meeting to interview for the position of Shared Director of Public 
Health.  
 
RESOLVED:  
 
The Employment Committee RESOLVED to  
 

31



1. Appoint a shared Director of Public Health by way of secondment arrangements with 
Cambridgeshire County Council, and  
2. Formally endorse Jyoti Atri to the post of shared Director of Public Health. 
  

 
Chairman 

15 April 2021 
11.00-12.30pm 

  

32



 
 

 

33



This page is intentionally left blank

34



 

1 

EMPLOYMENT COMMITTEE 
 

 
AGENDA ITEM No. 4 

 17 JUNE 2021 PUBLIC REPORT 

 
 

Report of: Mandy Pullen, Assistant Director HR and Organisational 
Development 

Cabinet Member(s) responsible: Councillor Marco Cereste, Cabinet Member for Digital Services 
and Transformation 

Contact Officer(s): Mandy Pullen, Assistant Director HR and Organisational 
Development 

Tel. 863628 

 

REVISED EMPLOYMENT POLICIES 

 

R E C O M M E N D A T I O N S 
FROM: Assistant Director of HR and Development Deadline date:  

 

 
It is recommended that Employment Committee approve: 
 
1)  the new Respect at Work Policy and Procedure 
2)  the revised Grievance Policy & Procedure  
3)  the revised Equality and Diversity Policy 
 

 
1. ORIGIN OF REPORT 

 
1.1 This report is submitted to Employment Committee following agreement at the Joint Consultative 

Forum with the trade unions on 7 June 2021. 

2. PURPOSE AND REASON FOR REPORT 
 

2.1 The purpose of the report is to obtain approval to the changes made to the employment policies 
and documents detailed above. Changes that have been made to the policies are generally 
indicated on the documents in red text. 
 

2.2 This report is for the Employment Committee to consider under its Terms of Reference No. 2.3.2.6 
 
To promote and pursue a policy of equal opportunities in employment. 
 

3. TIMESCALES  

 
  

Is this a Major Policy 
Item/Statutory Plan? 

NO If yes, date for 
Cabinet meeting  

 

 

4. BACKGROUND AND KEY ISSUES 
 

4.1 Respect at Work Policy and Guidelines 

35



 

2 

Previously all aspects of bullying and harassment were dealt with as Grievances under the 

Grievance Policy.  We have engaged with managers and our union representatives, and we 

recognise that further focus is required regarding this important subject. It was decided that to 

raise the profile of respect at work, it should be set out in a separate policy. This new document 

outlines the Council’s approach to bullying and harassment in the workplace and in any work-

related setting outside the workplace, e.g. business trips and work-related social events.  The 

procedure outlines the process for members of staff who believe that they have been harassed 

or bullied, to raise a complaint either informally or formally. 

Subject to the policy being approved, this will be further built on by drafting a campaign plan to 

keep this at the forefront of employees minds and embed the policy. 

The updated policy is at Appendix 1 and the procedure is at Appendix 2. 
 

4.2 Grievance Policy & Procedure  
 
The only changes made to the Grievance Policy and Procedure are to remove all reference to 
bullying and harassment, and to direct the reader to the Respect at Work Policy and Procedure. 
 
The updated policy is at Appendix 3 and the procedure is at Appendix 4. 
 

4.3 Equality and Diversity Policy  
 
The only change made to the Equality and Diversity policy are to direct the reader to the 
Respect at Work Policy and Procedure. 
 
The updated policy is at Appendix 5. 
 

5. CONSULTATION 
 

5.1 All Policies referred for approval in this report have been shared with and approved by the joint 
trade unions. 
 

6. ANTICIPATED OUTCOMES OR IMPACT 
 

6.1 Should members agree to these changes, this information will be published and shared on the 
council’s intranet. 
 

7. REASON FOR THE RECOMMENDATION 
 

7.1 The updated and new documents provide clearer guidance for managers and employees.    

8. ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED 
 

8.1 For the proposed changes, the status quo is the only alternative. 
 

9. IMPLICATIONS 
 

 Financial Implications 
 

9.1 None 
 

 Legal Implications 
 

9.2 The legal implications and obligations are as set out in the main body of the report. 
 

36



 

3 

 Equalities Implications 
 

9.3 All of the Policies recommended for approval reflect the Council’s ongoing commitment to ensure 
equality in the workplace. 
 

10. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 
Used to prepare this report, in accordance with the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 
 

10.1 None 
 

11. APPENDICES 
 

11.1 Appendix 1 – Respect at Work Policy (new) 

Appendix 2 – Respect at Work Guidance (new) 

Appendix 3 – Grievance Policy  

Appendix 4 – Grievance Procedure 

Appendix 5 -  Equality and Diversity Policy 
 

 
  
 
  

37



 

4 

Appendix 1 
 

 

RESPECT AT WORK  
POLICY 

 
1. Introduction 

This policy should be read in conjunction with the Equality and Diversity Policy, and the Respect at Work 
Procedure. 

2. Purpose 

Peterborough City Council is committed to creating a work environment where everyone is treated with 
respect and dignity, where staff do not experience harassment or bullying. 

The council will not tolerate bullying and harassment of any kind. All allegations of disrespectful 
behaviour will be investigated and, if appropriate, disciplinary action will be taken.  

The council will also not tolerate victimisation of a person for making allegations of bullying or 
harassment in good faith or supporting someone to make such a complaint. Victimisation is a disciplinary 
offence. 

Bullying, harassment and discrimination can have a significant impact on our mental and physical health.  

It negatively impacts on team morale and productivity and has a detrimental impact on service delivery.  

For these reasons, as a Council we will not tolerate this behaviour in our workplace. 

Employees who are disrespectful in the workplace may face disciplinary penalties, up to and including 
dismissal; they could be personally liable to pay compensation in legal claims and may find their own 
family and social relationships are adversely affected. Serious harassment may be a criminal offence. 

3. Scope 

These arrangements apply to all City Council employees; however, a different procedure may be 
necessary for certain employees, e.g., those based in schools and who are subject to procedures involving 
Governing Bodies.  In these circumstances, Governing Bodies, where appropriate are recommended to 
adopt the principles of this procedure into their individual school policies.   

4. Key Principles 

This policy covers disrespectful behaviour: - 

● of and by managers,  
● employees, 
● contractors, 
● agency staff, 
● and anyone else engaged to work at the council, whether by direct contract with the council or 

otherwise. 

If the complainant or alleged harasser is not employed by the council, (e.g., if the individual's contract is 
with an agency, partner organisation or another local authority), the council may require the individual to 
be removed, if appropriate, after investigation.  

The policy covers disrespectful behaviour in all settings (this will include the workplace, and any work-
related setting outside the workplace, e.g., work trips, conferences, training, and social events). 

38



 

5 

Actions outside of work can also be considered unacceptable behaviour.  This includes, sending 
unacceptable messages by phone, text or email or posting inappropriate content about an employee on 
the internet/social media.    

5. What is the definition of bullying, harassment and victimisation? 

Bullying or harassment will constitute unlawful discrimination where it relates to one of the protected 
characteristics, which are sex, gender reassignment, race (which includes colour, nationality and ethnic 
or national origins), disability, sexual orientation, religion or belief and age. Serious bullying or 
harassment may amount to other civil or criminal offences, e.g., a civil offence under the Protection from 
Harassment Act 1997 and criminal offences of assault. 

Bullying is offensive, intimidating, malicious or insulting behaviour, and/or an abuse or misuse of power 
that is meant to undermine, humiliate or injure the person on the receiving end. 
 
Harassment is unwanted conduct related to relevant protected characteristics, which are sex, gender 
reassignment, race (which includes colour, nationality and ethnic or national origins), disability, sexual 
orientation, religion or belief and age, that: 

● has the purpose of violating a person's dignity or creating an intimidating, hostile, 
degrading, humiliating or offensive environment for that person; or 
● is reasonably considered by that person to have the effect of violating their dignity or of 
creating an intimidating, hostile, degrading, humiliating or offensive environment for them, even if 
this effect was not intended by the person responsible for the conduct. 

A single incident can be harassment if it is sufficiently serious. 

Victimisation is subjecting a person to a detriment because they have, in good faith, complained 
(whether formally or otherwise) that someone has been bullying or harassing them or someone else or 
supported someone to make a complaint or given evidence in relation to a complaint. This would include 
isolating someone because they have made a complaint or giving them a heavier or more difficult 
workload. 

Provided that the employee acted in good faith, i.e. genuinely believed that what they are saying is true, 
they have a right not to be victimised for making a complaint or doing anything in relation to a complaint 
of bullying or harassment and the council will take appropriate action to deal with any alleged 
victimisation, which may include disciplinary action against anyone found to have victimised anyone. 

Making a complaint that the individual knows to be untrue, or giving evidence that they know to be 
untrue, may lead to disciplinary action being taken against the individual. 

6. Examples of bullying or harassment 

Bullying and harassment may be misconduct that is physical, verbal or non-verbal, e.g. by letter or email 
(so-called "flame-mail") or through posting on social media. 

Examples of unacceptable disrespectful behaviour that are covered by this policy include (but are not 
limited to):  

 Using offensive or abusive language 

 Exclusion from work place events and conversations 

 Side-lining someone, ignoring their contribution or taking away responsibilities 

 Making derogatory comments or patronising remarks 

 Telling or sharing stereotypical jokes or impersonations 

 Nonverbal signals which are disrespectful 

 Allocating work based on assumptions about a person’s characteristics 

 Displaying or sending offensive material 

 Asking intrusive or derogatory questions 

39



 

6 

 Deliberately or repeatedly misgendering someone (i.e. referring to someone using a pronoun that 

does not correctly reflect the gender with which they identify, particularly when a person has 

made it clear how they should be addressed)  

 Making suggestive or sexual comments 

 Micro aggressions – small comments, questions or actions that that communicate a negative 

perception of someone based on their characteristics.   

  

7. Examples of expected and unacceptable behaviour 

 

Expected behaviour Unacceptable behaviour 

Deal with colleagues in a respectful and 

professional manner at all times.  

Respect people’s dignity, personal 

boundaries and belongings. 

Violent or inappropriate physical contact, 

intimidation or damaging/stealing belongings.   

Creating an intimidating atmosphere in the 

workplace, whether intentional or not, by being 

aggressive or using inappropriate language. 

Communicate in a respectful way, taking 

extra care when delivering challenging 

messages, and being mindful and 

respectful of other people’s cultures and 

beliefs.   

Abusive or inappropriate language, mocking, 

ridiculing or humiliating, spreading 

rumours/gossip or making threats.    

Being open to feedback about your 

behaviour and the impact it has on 

others.  Reflecting on how your actions 

and words have been perceived.  Being 

ready to learn and improve how you 

interact with and treat others.     

Being unwilling to change how you behave or 

communicate when you have been made 

aware that you are having a negative impact 

on other people.     

As managers, address employment 

matters promptly and professionally and 

manage performance in a consistent and 

constructive way.   

Unacceptable behaviour includes deliberately 

withholding/falsifying information, sabotaging 

work, marginalising someone, persistent 

criticism not commensurate with performance.  

Singling out someone for trivial/unpleasant 

tasks.   

Respecting and valuing employees as 

individuals with different life experiences 

and perspectives.  Valuing the benefits 

that having a diverse team brings to 

service delivery.      

Discriminating against a person because of 

their characteristics.  Marginalising someone.  

Using offensive language.  Behaviour that 

makes someone feel uncomfortable or 

excluded.  Asking questions about a person’s 

characteristics where this makes them feel 

uncomfortable especially where they have 

made it clear that questions are unwelcome.   

 

8. What to do if you think you are experiencing disrespectful behaviour 

The Respect at Work Procedure details what you can do if you have experienced behaviour that you 
have found to be disrespectful. 

40



 

7 

You may be able to sort out matters informally, or, if an informal approach does not resolve matters, or 
you think the situation is too serious to be dealt with informally, you can make a formal complaint.  

In very serious cases, a criminal offence may have been committed and you may wish to report matters 
to the police. The human resources department can arrange for someone to accompany you to make a 
complaint to the police. 

9. Helping to stop disrespectful behaviour. 

We all have a responsibility to help create and maintain a work environment free of bullying and 
harassment. You can help to do this by: 

● being aware of how your own behaviour may affect others and changing it, if necessary - 
you can still cause offence even if you are "only joking". 
● treating your colleagues with dignity and respect. 
● taking a stand if you think inappropriate jokes or comments are being made. 
● making it clear to others when you find their behaviour unacceptable, unless it should be 
obvious in advance that this would be the case. 
● intervening, if possible, to stop harassment or bullying and giving support to recipients. 
● making it clear that you find harassment and bullying unacceptable. 
● reporting harassment or bullying to your manager or human resources and supporting the 
organisation in the investigation of complaints; and 

● if a complaint of harassment or bullying is made, not prejudging or victimising the 
complainant or alleged harasser. 

Managers have a particular responsibility to: 

● set a good example by their own behaviour. 
● ensure that there is a supportive working environment. 
● make sure that staff know what standards of behaviour are expected of them. 
● intervene to stop bullying or harassment; and 

● report promptly to human resources any complaint of bullying or harassment, or any 
incident of bullying or harassment witnessed by them. 

10. Being accused of bullying or harassment 

If someone approaches you informally about your behaviour, do not dismiss the complaint out of hand 
because you were only joking or think the complainant is being too sensitive.  

Remember that different people find different things acceptable, and everyone has the right to decide 
what behaviour is acceptable to them and to have their feelings respected by others. You may have 
offended someone without intending to. If that is the case, the person concerned may be content with an 
explanation and an apology from you and an assurance that you will be careful in future not to behave in 
a way that you now know may cause offence. Provided that you do not repeat the behaviour that has 
caused offence, that may well be the end of the matter. 

If a formal complaint is made about your behaviour, this will be fully investigated in line with the Respect 
at Work Procedure, and the council may bring disciplinary proceedings, if appropriate.  

11. HR and Union Contact 

We recognise the importance of being able to talk to someone directly.  The HR Advisors are people who 
will provide confidential information to those who feel that they are experiencing unreasonable behaviour 
in the workplace, have witnessed any such unreasonable behaviour, or who have been accused of it.  Their 
role is to: 

● Talk through the Respect at Work Policy and Procedure.   
● Give suggestions on how to initiate an informal discussion. 

41



 

8 

● Help the person to consider how to approach the other party and express their concerns clearly. 
● Signpost the support that is available. 

Any discussions will not be documented and will be in total confidence.   

Trade Union Representatives are also available to those who feel that they are experiencing unreasonable 
behaviour in the workplace, have witnessed any such unreasonable behaviour, or who have been accused 
of it.   

12. Employee Assistance Programme 

All employees can use the Employee Assistance Programme to access unlimited practical and emotional 
support.  A free confidential helpline is available 24 hours a day, which can be reached by calling 0800 
030 5182.  You can also have up to 6 session of structured telephone counselling or face-to-face 
counselling which can be requested using the same telephone number.   

More details can be found via the Health Assured website www.healthassuredeap.co.uk 

13. Making this policy work 

The council will provide training to help employees understand their rights and responsibilities under this 
policy and what they can do to help create a working environment free of bullying and harassment. We 
will provide additional training to managers to enable them to deal more effectively with complaints of 
bullying and harassment. 

The council will review the outcomes of cases where complaints of bullying and harassment have been 
made to check that the proper procedures have been followed and to identify any points that can be 
learned from those cases and implement any necessary changes. 

The council will also periodically monitor how successful it is being in creating a workplace free of 
bullying and harassment by other means which may include confidential staff surveys. 

When carrying out any reviews or monitoring, the organisation will ensure that individuals' personal data 
is handled in accordance with its data protection policy. 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

42

http://www.healthassuredeap.co.uk/


 

9 

 

 

Appendix 2 

 

RESPECT AT WORK 
PROCEDURE 
 

 
1. Introduction 

This procedure should be read in conjunction with the Equality and Diversity Policy, and the Respect at 
Work Policy. 

The council is committed to ensuring equal opportunities and fair treatment in the workplace for all its staff. 
One of the key aims of this procedure is to enable the council to provide a working environment in which 
all staff feel comfortable and in which everyone is treated with respect and dignity, regardless of gender, 
sexual orientation, transgender status, marital or family status, colour, race, nationality, ethnic or national 
origins, creed, culture, religion or belief, age, disability or any other personal factor or quality. 

2. Purpose 

The purpose of this procedure is to provide a route for members of staff who believe that they have been 
harassed or bullied to raise a complaint either informally or formally. 

3. Key Principles 

The council will treat all complaints of disrespectful behaviour seriously and will investigate them 
promptly, efficiently and in confidence. The main aim of this procedure is to provide a framework for 
resolving complaints of harassment or bullying, and for stopping any behaviour that is causing offence or 
distress. 

4. Scope 

These arrangements apply to all City Council employees as far as possible.  However, a different procedure 
may be necessary for certain employees, e.g. those based in schools and who are subject to procedures 
involving Governing Bodies.  In these circumstances, Governing Bodies, where appropriate are 
recommended to adopt the principles of this procedure into their individual school policies.  

5. Right to report disrespectful behaviour 

Employees have an absolute right to complain if they are treated in a manner that they believe constitutes 
harassment or bullying. This will include behaviour that has caused offence, humiliation, embarrassment 
or distress. Apart from complaints about the behaviour of colleagues, employees have the right to complain 
if they believe that they have been bullied or harassed by a third party, for example a customer, client or 
supplier. Employees who raise a genuine complaint under this procedure will under no circumstances be 
subjected to any unfavourable treatment or victimisation as a result of making a complaint. 

However, if it is established that an employee has made a deliberately false or malicious complaint against 
another person about harassment or bullying, disciplinary action will be taken against that employee. 

Any employee who witnesses an incident that they believe to be the harassment or bullying of another 
member of staff should report the incident in confidence either to their line manager or to the HR dept. The 
council will take all such reports seriously and will treat the information in strict confidence as far as it is 
possible to do so. 

43



 

10 

 

 

6. HR and Union Contact  

We recognise the importance of being able to talk to someone directly.  The HR Advisors will provide 
confidential information to those who feel that they are experiencing unreasonable behaviour in the 
workplace, have witnessed any such unreasonable behaviour, or who have been accused of it.  Their role 
is to: 

● Talk through the Respect at Work Policy and Procedure    
● Give suggestions on how to initiate an informal discussion. 
● Help the person to consider how to approach the other party and express their concerns clearly. 
● Signpost the support that is available 

Where an employee would like support at any stage of this procedure, then they should email their HR 
Advisor at askhr@peterborough.gov.uk.  Emails sent will be picked up by a member of the HR Team who 
will put the employee in touch with an appropriate person who will call or email the employee within 48 
hours to arrange an appointment or telephone discussion.  These discussions will not be documented, and 
will be in total confidence. 

Trade Union Representatives are also available to those who feel that they are experiencing unreasonable 
behaviour in the workplace, have witnessed any such unreasonable behaviour, or who have been accused 
of it. 

7. Informal Process 

Before raising a formal complaint, the employee is encouraged in the first instance to talk directly and 
informally to the person whom they believe is harassing them, and explain clearly what aspect of the 
person's behaviour is unacceptable, or is causing offence, and request that it stop immediately.  

It may be that the person whose conduct is causing offence is genuinely unaware that their behaviour is 
unwelcome or objectionable and that a direct approach can resolve the matter without the need for formal 
action. The employee may want to add that, if the behaviour continues, the employee would make a formal 
complaint.  

The employee should keep a note of the date and what was said and done. This will be useful evidence if 
the unacceptable behaviour continues and the employee wishes to make a formal complaint.  

In most cases it is better to have a face-to-face discussion with the other party, but if the employee feels 
uncomfortable about doing this, then a letter or an email may also be suitable. 

8. Formal Process 

If the employee has approached the person to no avail, or if the harassment is of a very serious nature, 
they may elect to raise a formal complaint.  

In very serious cases, a criminal offence may have been committed and the employee may wish to report 
matters to the police.  

In bringing a complaint of harassment/bullying, the employee should raise this with their line manager, or, 
if the line manager is the person that the allegations are centred on then they should raise the issue with 
the next level manager, or if the employee feels they cannot do this for any reason then they should 
approach an HR Advisor. 

The complaint may be raised verbally or in writing, but should include the following: 

● the name of the person whose behaviour they believe amounts to harassment or bullying; 

44



 

11 

● the type of behaviour that is causing offence, together with specific examples if possible; 
● dates and times when incidents of harassment or bullying occurred, and where they occurred; 
● the names of any employees who witnessed any incidents, or who themselves may have been the 

victims of harassment or bullying by the same person; and 
● any action that the employee has already taken to try to deal with the harassment. 

 

9. Investigation 

Managers who receive a complaint of harassment will determine the most appropriate means of 
investigation.  In all cases the matter will be investigated promptly, thoroughly and objectively and, where 
necessary, action taken under the formal disciplinary procedure in order to ensure that the council's 
Respect at Work Policy is complied with. 

If an employee feels that they have been bullied or harassed by customers, suppliers, vendors, visitors or 
members of the public, they should report any such behaviour to their manager who will consider taking 
action that is reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances.  

Line managers should be responsive, sensitive and supportive towards any employee who raises a 
complaint of harassment or bullying. Managers will maintain confidentiality to the maximum extent possible.  

Investigation of allegations will normally require limited disclosure on a "need to know" basis. For example, 
the identity of the employee complaining of harassment or bullying and the nature of the allegations must 
be revealed to the person they are complaining about, so that person is able to respond to the allegations. 
Some details may also have to be given to potential witnesses but this will be limited as far as possible, 
whilst ensuring a fair and sufficiently thorough investigation. The importance of confidentiality will be 
emphasised to witnesses. 

Wherever possible, the Council will try to ensure that the complainant and the alleged harasser are not 
required to work together while the complaint is under investigation. This could involve giving working 
from home, where possible, or remaining at home on special leave, if agreed. In the case of serious 
allegations, the alleged harasser may be suspended while investigation and any disciplinary proceedings 
are underway. 

Employees will not normally have the right to be accompanied at an investigative interview however a work 
colleague or trade union representative may accompany the employee in an observer capacity to provide 
support, but not in the role of an advocate.  The investigating officer may at their discretion allow the 
employee to bring a companion who is not a work colleague or trade union representative if this will help 
overcome a disability or if the employee has difficulty understanding English.  In allowing this support the 
investigation must not be unreasonably delayed.  The HR Advisors will assist any line manager in dealing 
with complaints of harassment or bullying. All incidents of harassment/bullying should, in any event, be 
reported to the Human Resources department. 

10. Possible outcomes of the Investigation 

The manager will meet with both parties separately to outline the findings of the investigation and to advise 

what action will be taken going forward.  They will then write to both parties to confirm the outcome and 

any actions or follow up agreed.  Where an investigation involves a group of people, the manager will 

address the behaviour of each individual separately. 

 

Potential outcomes 

 

Evidence of inappropriate 
behaviour 

If the investigation finds that the perceived perpetrator has 
behaved inappropriately, the manager will consider, in 
discussion with HR, whether to refer it to the formal 
disciplinary procedure.  Information gathered throughout the 

45



 

12 

investigation will be used as part of a disciplinary 
investigation.   

No evidence of 
inappropriate behaviour 

If no evidence is found of inappropriate conduct the manager 
will explain this finding and the rationale for coming to this 
conclusion.  

Inappropriate conduct 
requiring action short of 
disciplinary 

If evidence of inappropriate conduct is found where the 
behaviour needs to change but disciplinary action is not 
considered to be appropriate, the manager will issue a 
Management Instruction setting out any expectations about 
anything that needs to change.  This will be monitored by 
their line manager going forward to ensure that the issue 
does not recur.  Any further incidents of inappropriate 
behaviour are likely to lead to formal disciplinary action.  

Failure to commit to 
change of behaviour 

If the individual will not agree or commit to a change of 
behaviour then this will automatically be taken forward under 
the formal Disciplinary Procedure. 

In all cases the manager will discuss and agree actions to move forward, which may include arranging for 
mediation to help restore the working relationship.  The investigation may also have highlighted training 
needs for one or both parties.   In this case a training plan will be put in place to support the employee(s) 
to obtain the skills that they need. 

11. Appeal 

The employee has a right to appeal the outcome of the formal investigation in line with the councils Appeals 

Policy and Procedure. 

12. Employees leaving the council 

An employee may raise a concern just before leaving the council.  Wherever possible the council will 
apply this procedure in full.  Where this is not possible in the time available, the approach taken will be 
adapted to ensure reasonable consideration is given to the issue before the employee leaves the 
council’s employment.  Issues that have been highlighted will be addressed, even if the employee is no 
longer in employment, where the concerns raised may have implications for other employees.       

 

 

 

13. Flow Chart 

 

   

46



 

13 

 
 
 
 
 
 

47



 

14 

Appendix 3 
 
 

GRIEVANCE POLICY 
 

1. Introduction 

 

This policy should be read in conjunction with the Grievance Procedure.   

 

2. Purpose 

 

The purpose of this policy is to enable employees (whether collectively or individually) to raise a grievance 
about problems or concerns at work, working conditions or relationships with colleagues (this excludes 
bullying and/or harassment which is covered in the Respect at Work Policy and Procedure). 
 
This policy applies to all employees in work-related circumstances (whether or not in the workplace) 
regardless of their status or length of service.   
 
This policy does not form part of any employee’s contract of employment.  It may be amended from time 
to time. 
 
We operate a separate Whistleblowing Policy to enable employees to report illegal activities, wrongdoing 
or malpractice however, where employees consider that they have been directly affected by the matter in 
question a grievance/complaint may be raised under this policy.   
 
For matters that are the subject of collective negotiation or consultation with the trade unions, or where 
there is a dispute between Peterborough City Council and one or more recognised trade union refer to the 
Collective Disputes Procedure available through the intranet. 

 

3. Definitions 

 
This section is intended for guidance purposes only and in any circumstance where a legitimate grievance 
is raised, it must be dealt with in accordance with the Grievance Procedure. 

 
Grievance 
 
A grievance is a concern, problem or complaint that an employee would like to raise with their employer. 
  

48

https://drive.google.com/open?id=0B9NhqTWpvuxwVlF0VlFTd3pKa3M


 

15 

Issues that may cause grievances include but are not limited to: 
 

● Harassment, bullying, Discrimination and/or victimisation (refer to the Grievance Procedure available 
through the intranet for further definition); 

● Terms and conditions of employment; 
● Health and Safety; 
● Work relations; 
● New working practices; 
● Working environment; and 

● Organisational change. 

 

4. Key Principles 

 
● Peterborough City Council expects and is committed to ensuring that all employees are treated and 

treat others with dignity and respect in an open and effective working environment. 
 
● The intention is to always aim to resolve grievances informally where possible. 

 

● All grievances will be treated seriously and addressed promptly and sensitively in accordance with the 
Grievance Procedure available through the intranet. 

 
● In circumstances where a grievance is upheld Peterborough City Council will take all appropriate and 

recommended action. 
 
● Proven allegations amounting to gross misconduct or misconduct on the part of  employees will 

be dealt with under the Disciplinary Procedure available through the intranet 
 
● In any circumstance where a grievance relates to someone other than an employee all reasonably 

practicable steps (having regard to the needs of the business) will be taken to prevent against risks of 
recurrence.   

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

49



 

16 

Appendix 4 

 
Grievance Procedure 
This procedure is to provide helpful information to assist the management of grievance issues and is not intended to 

amount to legal advice. 

 
 

1. Introduction 
 

This Procedure should be read in conjunction with the Grievance Policy available through the intranet. 
 

2. Definitions 

A grievance is a concern, problem or complaint that an employee or former employee would like to raise 
with their employer. 
 
For the purposes of this procedure the ‘Grievance Manager’ is defined as the line-manager except in cases 
where this procedure is being instigated by a Director or Head of Service in which case the ‘Grievance 
Manager’ will be the Chief Executive. 
 
In this procedure references to employees will be taken to include references to current and/or former 
employees. 
 
Unlawful Discrimination, Harassment and Victimisation 
 
The definitions set out in the Equality and Diversity Policy (available through the intranet) will apply to 
grievances in relation to perceived acts of unlawful discrimination.  Cases of bullying and/or harassment 
are covered in the Respect at Work Policy and Procedure. harassment and victimisation.   
 
Bullying  
 
Bullying may be characterised as offensive, intimidating, malicious or insulting behaviour, an abuse or 
misuse of power which is meant to undermine, humiliate or injure the person on the receiving end.  
 
Power does not always mean being in a position of authority and can include both personal strength and 
the power to coerce through fear or intimidation. 
 
Bullying make take the form of physical, verbal and nonverbal conduct and may include for example picking 
on someone or setting him or her up to fail or making threats or comments about someone's job security 
without good reason. 
 
Legitimate, reasonable and constructive criticism of an employee’s performance or behaviour or 
reasonable instructions given to workers in the course of their employment will not amount to bullying on 
their own. 
 
A single incident can be bullying if it is sufficiently serious. 
 
 
 
 
 

3. Raising grievances informally 

If an employee has a grievance or complaint they should, wherever possible, start by talking it over with 
their manager to try and agree a solution informally.  

50

https://drive.google.com/open?id=0B9NhqTWpvuxwYzcwT1dQSGRxOTg


 

17 

 
Grievances should be raised as soon as possible after the event or incident complained of.  In all 
circumstances grievances should be raised within 6 months unless exceptional circumstances exist which 
justify a departure from this. 
 
Where an employee feels unable to speak to their manager for example because the complaint is about 
them, they should speak informally to a more senior manager. 
 
Where informal discussion does not resolve the grievance the formal procedure (as set out below) should 
be followed. 
 

4. Formal Written Grievances 

If an employee’s grievance cannot be resolved informally they should put it in writing and submit it to their 
line manager or where appropriate a more senior manager (“the Grievance Manager”). 
 
Written grievances should be headed “Formal Grievance” and detail the nature of the complaint as well as 
the outcome being sought.   
 
If the Grievance Manager receives a document that looks like a formal grievance, but it is not in that format, 
the employee should be asked if he or she wants to follow the formal Grievance Procedure, and asked to 
provide the necessary information.  
 
The Grievance Manager should clarify with the employee aspects of the grievance which may be unclear 
before any meeting takes place. 
 
Collective grievances 
 
Where an identical grievance is made by two or more employees (collective grievance) and all employees 
agree, a joint written grievance can be submitted.  This should be headed “Formal Collective Grievance” 
and must:- 
 
● detail the nature of the grievance and the outcome being sought;   
● identify the individuals who wish to raise the grievance; 
● identify any nominated trade union representative or colleague to represent them all; 
● state that all have voluntarily consented to use the collective grievance process and; 
● confirm that each individual understands that the grievance will give each of them the right to only 

one collective grievance meeting and outcome, and (if applicable) appeal meeting and outcome; and 
 
If it is not agreed, separate grievances will apply. 
 
Further attempts may be made to resolve the matter informally, depending on the nature of the complaint. 
However, if the employee is not satisfied with the outcome, they may insist on the matter proceeding to a 
full Grievance Meeting. 
 
If the issue is proceeding to a full Grievance Meeting the employee should be informed and an explanation 
given of what will happen next. 
 
Where an employee raises a grievance during a disciplinary process the disciplinary process may be 
temporarily suspended in order to deal with the grievance.   
 
Where a grievance triggers a disciplinary investigation the grievance process may be temporarily 
suspended in order to deal with the disciplinary matter. 
 
In any circumstance where both the grievance and disciplinary procedures apply in relation to the same 
facts it may be appropriate to deal with both matters together.  This decision will be made by the Grievance 

51



 

18 

and/or Disciplinary Manager. 
 

5. Investigation 

The Grievance Manager will determine whether or not an investigation of some or all of the issues raised 
by the grievance is required.  This decision will ordinarily be taken either prior to or during the Grievance 
Meeting. 
 
The Grievance Manager will determine the most appropriate means of investigation to include conducting 
their own investigation or appointing an internal or external investigator.  In all cases guidance should be 
sought from the relevant HR Business Partner before making this decision.  
 
The amount of any investigation required will depend on the nature of the allegations and will vary from 
case to case.  It may involve collecting documentation from and/or interviewing and taking statements from 
the employee, the subject of the complaint and any other relevant witnesses. 
 
Employees will not normally have the right to be accompanied at an investigative interview however a work 
colleague or trade union representative may accompany the employee in an observer capacity to provide 
support, but not in the role of an advocate.  The investigating officer may at their discretion allow the 
employee to bring a companion who is not a work colleague or trade union representative if this will help 
overcome a disability or if the employee has difficulty understanding English.  In allowing this support the 
investigation must not be unreasonably delayed.     
 
Employees must cooperate fully and promptly in any investigation.  This may include providing the names 
of any witnesses, disclosing relevant documents and attending interviews. 
 

6. Right to be accompanied 

Employees may bring a companion to any Grievance Meeting under this procedure.  The companion may 
be a trade union representative or a colleague.   
 
The Grievance Manager may at their discretion allow the employee to bring a companion who is not a 
colleague or trade union representative if this will help overcome a disability or if the employee has difficulty 
understanding English. 
 
Companions may make representations and ask questions but should not answer questions on the 
employee’s behalf.  The employee may talk privately with their companion at any time. 
 
Acting as a companion is voluntary and no employee is required to fulfil this role unless they are happy to 
do so.   
 
If the employee’s choice of companion is unreasonable they may be asked to choose someone else for 
example: 
 
● If there is a conflict of interest or the companion’s attendance may prejudice the Grievance Meeting; or 
● If the companion’s unavailability will undermine the Grievance Manager’s ability to call a Grievance 

Meeting within the prescribed timeframes unless exceptional circumstances exist. 
 

7. Arranging a grievance meeting 

The Grievance Meeting will be held as soon as possible and where achievable within 1 week of receiving 
a formal written grievance. 
 
If the grievance is a collective grievance only one joint Grievance Meeting will be arranged. 
 
At least 1 week prior to the Grievance Meeting the employee should be sent a letter dealing with the 

52



 

19 

following matters: 

● Confirming the date, time and venue; 
● Asking for details of any witness or companions they intend to bring with them; and 
● Informing them of any other persons who will be attending to give evidence e.g. where an investigation 

has taken place, the investigating officer. 

If the employee or their companion is unable to attend the meeting they must notify the Grievance Manager 
as soon as possible.  They should be asked to suggest an alternative date so long as it is reasonable and 
unless exceptional circumstances exist not more than 1 week after the original date proposed.   
 
The employee and/or their companion (if any) should make every effort to attend the Grievance Meeting.  
 
If an employee continues to be unable to attend scheduled Grievance Meetings, a meeting may take place 
in their absence and a decision will be made on the evidence available.  Where Grievance Manager intends 
to hold the hearing in the employee’s absence, the employee will be notified (where time permits in writing) 
beforehand. 
 
In this procedure references to employee within the context of a Grievance Meeting will be taken to also 
include references to their companion. 
 
Collective grievances 
 
For collective grievances, if all individuals are members of the same trade union, their trade union 
representative can (if they all agree) raise the grievance on their behalf.  Alternatively, they can agree to 
nominate one of them to act on behalf of them all.  If there is no one nominated representative, the 
individuals will be entitled to address concerns individually at the Grievance Meeting, but they will have no 
additional right to be accompanied beyond having their colleagues present.  If the individuals wish to be 
represented by their trade union representatives on an individual basis, the council will arrange to hear 
their grievances separately. 
 

8. Grievance Meeting 

The purpose of the Grievance Meeting is to enable the employee an opportunity to explain their grievance 
and how they think it should be resolved. 
 
The employee should give sufficient detail to enable the Grievance Manager to either make a decision or 
determine what further investigation is required. 
 
It is not anticipated that the Grievance Manager or employee will need to call evidence from witnesses 
however this will be at the Grievance Manager’s discretion depending on the circumstances of the case. 
 
Meeting format 
 
● The employee should be asked to present the grievance, ensuring that it is confined to matters directly 

relevant to the issues raised. 
● Where it is necessary for the employee to invite witnesses to attend and provide information, the 

Grievance Manager will have an opportunity to ask them questions at the end of each presentation. 
● Where an Investigating Officer has been appointed and is required to attend the Grievance Meeting they 

will present the investigation report.  The employee should be given an opportunity to ask questions at 
the end of that presentation. 

● Where any other relevant witnesses attend to provide information, including those invited by the 
Investigating Officer, the employee should be given an opportunity to ask them questions at the end of 
each presentation.  

●  Once the evidence has been explored, and the employee has been given an opportunity to comment 
and respond, the meeting should be adjourned for the Grievance Manager to reach a decision.  

53



 

20 

● The Grievance Meeting should be reconvened on the same day, unless there are matters arising which 
require further investigation which will take longer than the remainder of the day to complete. 

● Where the Grievance Meeting cannot be reconvened on the same day, a future date will be arranged 
without undue delay.  In such circumstances the employee should be given written notice of the date, 
time and venue at the earliest opportunity and not less than 3 days beforehand unless otherwise agreed. 

 

9. Communicating the decision 

The Grievance Manager should reconvene the Grievance Meeting whether on the same or a different day 
to explain the decision, the reasons for it and any further action proposed to rectify the issues raised.   
 
In appropriate circumstances and with the agreement of the employee it may be possible to agree for the 
decision to be communicated in writing only but in any event all decisions should be confirmed to the 
employee in writing within 1 week of the Grievance Meeting. 
 
The decision letter should contain the following information: 
 

● The decision made and the reasons for reaching it; and 
● Confirming the employee’s right to appeal and to whom. 
 
For collective grievances each employee will be notified individually of the outcome. 

10. Appeal 

If the employee is dissatisfied with the outcome of their grievance, they may appeal in accordance with the 
Appeals Policy and Appeals Procedure available through the intranet. 
 

11. Document Retention 

The Grievance Manager should forward copies of all paperwork relating to the grievance and Grievance 
Meetings to HR Support. Any such correspondence should be labelled for the attention of the relevant HR 
Business Partner for the service area and marked as ‘Strictly Private and Confidential.’ 
 
Any paperwork provided will be stored and/or destroyed in accordance with the Council’s records retention 
and management policies. 
 

12. Further Information 

For further advice and/or template letters please discuss with the HR Business Partner for your service 
area. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

54



 

21 

 

Appendix 5 
 

EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY POLICY  
 

1. Purpose and scope 

 
The commitment made in this policy is delivered through the City Council's Equality Duty. The policy is 
designed to ensure that there is a consistent approach across the authority to all areas of equalities work.  
 
Disrespectful behaviour, including bullying and harassment, is specifically covered in the Respect at 
Work Policy.  Any employee that believes that they have experienced disrespectful behaviour should 
follow the Respect at Work Procedure. 
 
1.1 Peterborough City Council believes that: 

● everybody should have an equal opportunity to contribute to and benefit from society and  
● a diverse integrated and cohesive community is a positive asset to the City which allows greater 

opportunities for a wider society to influence and contribute to Council strategy 

 
1.2 Peterborough City Council recognises that people still experience inequality in society because of 

their background.  The City Council will therefore not tolerate discrimination directly or indirectly in 
recruitment or employment or against customers on the grounds of age, disability, sex, gender 
reassignment, pregnancy, maternity, race (which includes colour, nationality and ethnic or 
national origins), sexual orientation, religion or belief, or because someone is married or in a civil 
partnership.  These are known as “protected characteristics.” 

 
1.3 The Council will lead by example.   It will take active steps to challenge prejudice, discrimination 

and harassment and will identify equality objectives to promote equality of opportunity as well as 
equality of outcomes.     

 
1.4 This Policy will underpin all decisions taken by the Council and all actions by its employees. 
 
1.5 Employees who feel they have been unlawfully discriminated against may use the Council’s 

Grievance Policy and Procedure. 
 
1.6 Service users who wish to raise any concerns can do so through the Council’s Complaints 

Procedure. 
 
1.7 Acts of discrimination, harassment, bullying or victimisation against employees or customers are 

disciplinary offences and will be dealt with under the Council’s disciplinary procedure.  
Discrimination, harassment, bullying or victimisation may constitute gross misconduct and could 
lead to dismissal without notice. 

 
 
 
 
 

2. The Law 

Types of unlawful discrimination 

2.1  Direct discrimination is where a person is treated less favourably than another  because of a 

55



 

22 

protected characteristic. An example of direct discrimination would be  refusing to employ a woman 
because she is pregnant. 

In limited circumstances, employers can directly discriminate against an individual for  a reason related 
to any of the protected characteristics where there is an occupational requirement. The occupational 
requirement must be crucial to the post and a proportionate means of achieving a legitimate aim. 

2.2  Indirect discrimination is where a provision, criterion or practice is applied that is 
 discriminatory in relation to individuals who have a relevant protected characteristic 
 (although it does not explicitly include pregnancy and maternity, which is covered by indirect sex 
discrimination) such that it would be to the detriment of people who share  that protected characteristic 
compared with people who do not, and it cannot be shown to be a proportionate means of achieving a 
legitimate aim. 

2.3  Harassment is where there is unwanted conduct, related to one of the protected  characteristics 
(other than marriage and civil partnership, and pregnancy and maternity) that has the purpose or effect of 
violating a person’s dignity; or creating an intimidating, hostile, degrading, humiliating or offensive 
environment. It does not matter whether or not this effect was intended by the person responsible for the 
conduct. 

2.4  Associative discrimination is where an individual is directly discriminated against  or 
harassed for association with another individual who has a protected characteristic  (although it 
does not cover harassment because of marriage and civil partnership, and pregnancy and maternity). 

2.5  Perceptive discrimination is where an individual is directly discriminated against or 
 harassed based on a perception that he/she has a particular protected characteristic when he/she 
does not, in fact, have that protected characteristic (other than marriage and civil partnership, and 
pregnancy and maternity). 

2.6  Third-party harassment occurs where an employee is harassed and the  harassment is related 
to a protected characteristic (other than marriage and civil partnership, and pregnancy and maternity), by 
third parties such as clients or customers. For an employer to be liable: 

▪ the harassment must have occurred on at least two previous occasions (although not 
necessarily by the same harasser or suffering the same type of harassment);  

▪ it must be aware that the previous harassment has taken place; and  
▪ it must have failed to take reasonable steps to prevent harassment from happening again.  

2.7 Victimisation occurs where an employee is subjected to a detriment, such as being  denied a 
training opportunity or a promotion because he/she made or supported a complaint or raised a 
grievance under the Equality Act 2010, or because he or she is suspected of doing so. However, an 
employee is not protected from victimisation if he or she acted maliciously or made or supported an 
untrue complaint. There is no longer a need for a complainant to compare his or her treatment with 
someone who has not made or supported a complaint under the Equality Act 2010. For example, if a 
blind employee raises a grievance that the employer is not complying with its duty to make 
reasonable adjustments, and is then systematically excluded from all meetings, such behaviour could 
amount to victimisation. 

 
2.8 Failure to make reasonable adjustments is where a physical feature or a provision,  criterion 

or practice puts a disabled person at a substantial disadvantage compared with someone who does 
not have that protected characteristic and the employer has failed to make reasonable adjustments to 
enable the disabled person to overcome the disadvantage. 

3. Employment 

56



 

23 

 
As one of the largest employers in the City, the Council will:  
 

● Demonstrate its commitment to equality in all aspects of employment, including recruitment, 
career development, pay and benefits, opportunities for training, promotion, discipline, selection 
for redundancy and welfare 

● Monitor and report on its workforce and take positive action with a view to ensuring that its 
workforce at all levels reflects the communities it serves.  In particular the Council will monitor the 
ethnic, disability and gender composition of the existing workforce and of applicants for jobs 
(including promotion), and the number of people with disabilities.   

● Inform all employees of this Policy and of their rights to protection from discrimination, 
harassment or victimisation 

● Ensure managers and others likely to be involved in recruitment or other decision making where 
equal opportunities issues are likely to arise are provided with training in equal opportunities. 

● Inform all existing and new employees to help them understand their rights and responsibilities 
under this policy.  

● Promote flexible working policies and practices to increase opportunities for those with (in 
particular) caring responsibilities or health issues. 

● Ensure person and job specifications are limited to those requirements that are necessary for the 
effective performance of the job. Candidates for employment or promotion will be assessed 
objectively against the requirements for the job, taking account of any reasonable adjustments 
that may be required for candidates with a disability. 

 
 

4. Service Delivery 

 
The Council provides services both directly and by working with other organisations.  It will promote 
equality of opportunity for local people by: 
 

● Providing accessible information about the services available to them  
● Undertaking assessments to determine if there is any adverse impact for equalities on its policies 

and activities 

● Delivering services in ways which are appropriate, relevant and sensitive to service user needs 
and, whenever possible, removing barriers which may deny access  

● Using its powers to ensure that organisations providing services on its behalf operate in 
accordance with the aims of this Policy and have a good track record in handling equality issues, 
covering both employment as well as service issues. 

● Ensuring, wherever possible, outsourced services are provided by local organisations or those 
with close connections with the city. 

● Promoting widely the availability of the Council's Complaints system to ensure people know how 
to raise issues about services. 

● Ensuring staff do not discriminate against or harass a member of the public in the provision of 
services or goods.   

● Ensuring that reasonable adjustments are made to remove barriers and enable those with a 
disability to access services. 

● Discussing the importance of equality policies with all its partners and will encourage service 
providers to use the same or similar formats for evaluation purposes such as equality monitoring 
categories, equality impact assessments templates, etc. 

 
 Employees should report any bullying or harassment by customers, suppliers, visitors or others to their 

manager who will take appropriate action.  Service users who wish to raise any concerns of this nature 
can do so through the Council’s Complaints Procedure. 
  

5. Information, Consultation and Involvement 

57



 

24 

 
5.1  Effective information, consultation and involvement are essential to the success of this Policy.   
The Council will therefore:  
 
● Inform, consult and involve a wide range of people including employees and stakeholders about 

decisions which affect them so that they can influence policies and practices 

● Ensure that people from different backgrounds are able to fully participate in consultation and 
involvement activities  

● Give people a voice by promoting involvement in decision making and review such structures so that 
any proposed changes are considered and adopted where appropriate. 

 
 

6. Implementation 

 
6.1 To ensure the effectiveness of this Policy, the Council will: 
 
● Set equality outcomes and monitor progress against them  
● Consider the equal opportunities implications of any changes to policies, functions, strategies or 

projects and undertake equality impact assessments before implementation. 
● Identify barriers that prevent equal access to services and take measures to address them 

● Monitor the composition of its workforce and the take-up of its services and take positive action to 
redress inequalities  

 

7. Accountability 

 
7.1 The Cabinet Member whose portfolio covers equalities issues will be responsible for 

 monitoring the effectiveness of the policy and for recommending changes and  improvements 
necessary to the Cabinet. 

 
7.2 The Chief Executive will hold Directors accountable for taking steps to ensure that this Policy is 

promoted, understood and implemented by Council employees.  The Council’s Management Board 
will take overall responsibility for maximising progress towards a more inclusive society. 

 
7.3 All employees of Peterborough City Council are accountable and responsible for taking steps to 

promote equal opportunities in their day to day work and avoid unlawful discrimination.   

 

8. Review Date 

 
This policy will be reviewed in line with the City Council’s Equality Duty and whenever changes to 
legislation occur. 
  
 
 
 
 

58


	Agenda
	3a 25 August 2020
	3b 17 September 2020
	3c 14 October 2020
	3d 17 November 2020
	3e 27 November 2020 (AM)
	3f 27 November 2020 (PM)
	3g 18 December 2020
	3h 18 February 2021
	3i 15 April 2021
	4 Revised Employment Policies

